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Attorneys for Plaintiff
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEVADA
NORTHERN DIVISION
AL BAKER,

Plaintiff,
V.

LEO DROZDOFF, Acting Director of
the Nevada Department of Conservation
and Natural Resources; DAVID K.
MORROW, Administrator of the
Nevada State Parks; STEVE WEAVER,
Deputy Director of the Nevada State
Parks; ERIC JOHNSON, Nevada State
Parks Fallon Region Regional Manager;
and ANDREW BASS, Park Supervisor
I, Wild Horse State Recreation Area,

Defendants.
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No. 3:10-cv-00426-ECR-RAM

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR
DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE
RELIEF
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Plaintiff Al Baker, by and through his undersigned attorneys, hereby files this Amended

Complaint against Defendants and alleges as follows:

NATURE OF THE CLAIMS

1. Mr. Baker seeks declaratory and injunctive relief for Defendants’ deprivation of

the right to keep and bear arms guaranteed by the United States Constitution.

JURISDICTION

2. This Court has federal question jurisdiction over Mr. Baker’s claims for relief,
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331, because the claims arise under the United States Constitution.
Additionally, this Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1343(a)(3) and 42 U.S.C. § 1983
because this action seeks to redress the deprivation, under color of the laws and regulations of
the State of Nevada, of rights, privileges, or immunities secured by the United States

Constitution.

VENUE
3. Venue rests properly in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) and
Local Rule IA 8-1 because, inter alia, a substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to

the claim occurred in Elko County, Nevada.

PARTIES
4. Plaintiff Al Baker is a citizen of the United States and a resident of Idaho.
5. Mr. Baker is a NRA-certified Home Firearms Safety and Basic Pistol Instructor

and a Utah-certified Concealed Firearms Instructor. He is licensed to carry a concealed handgun

pursuant to the laws of the States of Idaho, Oregon, and Utah.
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6. Mr. Baker is a life-long outdoorsman. He regularly camps and hunts in Idaho and
Nevada and has concrete plans to camp in Nevada State Parks. He has a credible fear of arrest,
prosecution, incarceration, and/or fine if he were to possess a functional firearm while camping
in Nevada State Parks.

7. Defendant Leo Drozdoff is the Acting Director of the Nevada Department of
Conservation and Natural Resources. Defendant Drozdoff is responsible for the administration
of the Nevada State Parks and, by creating and enforcing the policies complained of in this
action, currently is depriving Mr. Baker of the right to keep and bear arms guaranteed by the
United States Constitution. Defendant Drozdoff is sued in both his individual and official
capacities.

8. Defendant David K. Morrow is the Administrator of the Nevada State Parks.
Defendant Morrow is responsible for the administration of the Nevada State Parks and, by
creating and enforcing the policies complained of in this action, currently is depriving Mr. Baker
of the right to keep and bear arms guaranteed by the United States Constitution. Defendant
Morrow is sued in both his individual and official capacities.

9. Defendant Steve Weaver is the Deputy Director of the Nevada State Parks.
Defendant Weaver is responsible for the operations and maintenance of the Nevada State Parks
and, by enforcing the policies complained of in this action, currently is depriving Mr. Baker of
the right to keep and bear arms guaranteed by the United States Constitution. Defendant Weaver
is sued in both his individual and official capacities.

10.  Defendant Eric Johnson is the Nevada State Parks Fallon Region Regional

Manager. Defendant Johnson is responsible for the management of the Fallon Region of the
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Nevada State Parks and, by enforcing the policies complained of in this action, currently is
depriving Mr. Baker of the right to keep and bear arms guaranteed by the United States
Constitution. Defendant Johnson is sued in both his individual and official capacities.

11.  Defendant Andrew Bass is Park Supervisor I for the Wild Horse State Recreation
Area. Defendant Bass is responsible for the supervision of the Wild Horse State Recreation Area
and, by enforcing the policies complained of in this action, currently is depriving Mr. Baker of
the right to keep and bear arms guaranteed by the United States Constitution. Defendant Bass is
sued in both his individual and official capacities.

LEGAL BACKGROUND

12. The Second Amendment to the United States Constitution provides: “A well
regulated Militia being necessary to the security of a free State, the right of the people to keep
and bear Arms shall not be infringed.”

13. The Second Amendment guarantees individuals a fundamental right to possess
and discharge functional firearms—including handguns, rifles, and shotguns—for purposes of
self-defense.

14. The Second Amendment guarantees, infer alia, the right to possess and use
firearms in residences, such as a home.

15. A tentis a temporary residence to which the guarantees of the Second
Amendment apply.

16. The Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution provides, in
pertinent part: “No State shall make or enforce any law which shall abridge the privileges or

immunities of citizens of the United States; nor shall any State deprive any person of life, liberty,
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or property, without due process of law; nor deny to any person within its jurisdiction the equal
protection of the laws.”

17. The right to keep and bear arms is guaranteed by the Second Amendment and
enforceable against the States and their political subdivisions, pursuant to the Due Process
Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment.

18. The right to keep and bear arms is a privilege and immunity of United States
citizenship, which States and their political subdivisions may not deny or abridge.

19.  Nevada Administrative Code § 407.105(1)(b) prohibits the possession of a
functional firearm by Mr. Baker within Nevada State Parks.

20.  Nevada Administrative Code § 407.105(1)(c) prohibits the discharge of any
firearm within Nevada State Parks.

21. The Nevada Administrative Code contains no self-defense exception for
possession or discharge of a firearm within Nevada State Parks.

22.  Nevada Revised Statutes §§ 407.0475(3), 193.150 provide penalties for violation
of Nevada Administrative Code § 407.105(1)(b)—(c), including 6 months imprisonment, or a
$1,000 fine, or both.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

23. On April 12, 2010, Mr. Baker submitted a special use permit application for a
group campsite at the Wild Horse State Recreation Area in Elko, Nevada. In this application,
Mr. Baker stated that he intended to possess a functional firearm in his tent for self-defense

purposes while camping at Wild Horse State Recreation Area.
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24. On June 1, 2010, Defendants subjected Mr. Baker to a deprivation of the right to
keep and bear arms secured by the United States Constitution by threatening to enforce Nevada
Administrative Code § 407.105 if Mr. Baker possessed a functional firearm in his tent while
camping at Wild Horse State Recreation Area.

25. Mr. Baker presently intends to possess a functional firearm in Nevada State Parks,
and if necessary discharge that firearm for self-defense, but he is prevented from doing so by
Defendants’ threatened enforcement of Nevada Administrative Code § 407.105.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Functional Firearms Ban)

(Right to Keep and Bear Arms)
(Declaratory and Injunctive Relief)

26.  Mr. Baker hereby realleges and incorporates the allegations in the preceding
paragraphs as if the same were fully set forth here.

27.  The right to keep and bear functional firearms for the core lawful purpose of self-
defense is guaranteed by the Second Amendment and enforceable against the states and their
political subdivisions, pursuant to the Fourteenth Amendment.

28.  Nevada Administrative Code § 407.105(1)(b) prohibits the possession of
functional firearms within Nevada State Parks.

29. By banning all functional firearms, Defendants currently maintain and actively
enforce a set of laws, customs, practices, and policies under color of state law that deprive Mr.
Baker of the right to keep and bear arms for self-defense in violation of the Second and
Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution. Defendants are thereby liable to Mr.

Baker under 42 U.S.C. § 1983.
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30.  Mr. Baker is entitled to declaratory and permanent injunctive relief against
continued enforcement and maintenance of Defendants’ unconstitutional customs, policies, and
practices. See 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201, 2202.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Prohibition on Defensive Discharge of Firearms)

(Right to Keep and Bear Arms)
(Declaratory and Injunctive Relief)

31.  Mr. Baker hereby realleges and incorporates the allegations in the preceding
paragraphs as if the same were fully set forth here.

32.  The right to keep and bear functional firearms for the core lawful purpose of self-
defense is guaranteed by the Second Amendment and enforceable against the states and their
political subdivisions, pursuant to the Fourteenth Amendment.

33.  Nevada Administrative Code § 407.105(1)(c) prohibits the discharge of firearms
within Nevada State Parks for the lawful purpose of self-defense.

34. By banning the discharge of firearms for the lawful purpose of self-defense,
Defendants currently maintain and actively enforce a set of laws, customs, practices, and policies
under color of state law which deprive individuals, including Mr. Baker, of the right to keep and
bear arms for self-defense, in violation of the Second and Fourteenth Amendments to the United
States Constitution. Defendants are thereby liable to Mr. Baker under 42 U.S.C. § 1983.

35.  Mr. Baker is entitled to declaratory and permanent injunctive relief against
continued enforcement and maintenance of Defendants’ unconstitutional customs, policies, and

practices. See 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201, 2202.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Wherefore, Mr. Baker respectfully requests that this Court enter judgment for Plaintiff as
follows:

A. Declare that Nevada Administrative Code § 407.105(1)(b) infringes the right to
keep and bear arms for self-defense guaranteed by the Second and Fourteenth Amendments, by
prohibiting the possession of functional firearms within Nevada State Parks;

B. Declare that Nevada Administrative Code § 407.105(1)(c) infringes the right to
keep and bear arms for self-defense guaranteed by the Second and Fourteenth Amendments, by
prohibiting the discharge of functional firearms within Nevada State Parks;

C. Permanently enjoin Defendants, their officers, agents, servants, employees, and
all persons in active concert or participation with them, from enforcing Nevada Administrative
Code § 407.105(1)(b) against Mr. Baker;

D. Permanently enjoin Defendants, their officers, agents, servants, employees, and
all persons in active concert or participation with them, from enforcing Nevada Administrative
Code § 407.105(1)(c) against Mr. Baker;

E. Award Mr. Baker his costs, attorneys’ fees, and other expenses in accordance
with law, including 42 U.S.C. § 1988;

F. Award Mr. Baker any further relief this Court deems just and equitable.



Case 3:10-cv-00426-ECR-RAM Document 9 Filed 08/26/10 Page 9 of 10

Respectfully submitted this 26th day of August 2010.

By:_/s/ James M. Manley

James M. Manley (admitted pro hac vice)
Mountain States Legal Foundation

2596 South Lewis Way

Lakewood, Colorado 80227

(303) 292-2021

(303) 292-1980 (facsimile)
jmanley@mountainstateslegal.com

Robert M. Salyer (NV Bar # 6810)
Wilson Barrows & Salyer, Ltd.
442 Court Street

Elko, Nevada 89801

(775) 738-7271

(775) 738-5041 (facsimile)
salyer@wilsonbarrows.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the 26th day of August 2010, I filed this FIRST AMENDED
COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF electronically through the
CM/ECEF system, which caused the following to be served by electronic means:

Kristen R. Geddes

Office of the Attorney General
100 N. Carson Street

Carson City, NV 89701-4717
kgeddes@ag.nv.gov

/s/ James M. Manley
James M. Manley
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
District of Nevada
Al Christopher Baker )
o~ )
aintiff )
v. ) Civil Action No. 3:10-cv-00426-ECR-RAM
Leo Drozdoff, David K. Morrow, Steve Weaver, )
Eric Johnson, and Andrew Bass )
)

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) Leo Drozdoff

Administrator of the Nevada Department of Conservation
and Natural Resources

901 S. Stewart Street

Suite 5005

Carson City, Nevada 89701-5248

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,

whose name and address are:

James M. Manley, Esq.

Mountain States Legal Foundation
2596 S. Lewis Way

Lakewood, CO 80227

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

Date:

CLERK OF COURT

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No. 3:10-cv-00426-ECR-RAM

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 ()

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

D I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ;or

(3 1 left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

O Iserved the summons on (rame of individual) , who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ,or
3 Ireturned the summons unexecuted because ; Or
O Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
District of Nevada
Al Christopher Baker )
—— )
aintiff )
v. ) Civil Action No. 3:10-cv-00426-ECR-RAM
Leo Drozdoff, David K. Morrow, Steve Weaver, )
Eric Johnson, and Andrew Bass )
)

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) Steve Weaver
Deputy Director of the Nevada State Parks
901 S. Stewart Street
Suite 5005
Carson City, Nevada 89701-5248

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

James M. Manley, Esq.

Mountain States Legal Foundation
2596 S. Lewis Way

Lakewood, CO 80227

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No. 3:10-cv-00426-ECR-RAM

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

(3 1 personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

(3 1 left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

O Iserved the summons on (name of individual) , who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or
1 Ireturned the summons unexecuted because ; or
3 Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00
I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.
Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:



